



The Child Dental Health Survey South Australia 1996

AIHW Dental Statistics and Research Unit The University of Adelaide

> in collaboration with The South Australian Dental Service

AIHW Catalogue No. DEN 34

AIHW Dental Statistics and Research Unit
The University of Adelaide
SOUTH AUSTRALIA 5005
Phone: (08) 8303 4051
(08) 8303 5027
Fax: (08) 8303 4858

The Australian Institute of Health and Welfare (AIHW) is an independent health and welfare statistics and information agency in the Commonwealth Health and Family Services portfolio. The Institute's mission is to inform community discussion and decision making through national leadership in the development and provision of authoritative and timely information on the health and welfare of Australians.

The AIHW Dental Statistics and Research Unit (DSRU) is a collaborative unit of the AIHW established in 1988 at The University of Adelaide. The DSRU aims to improve the oral health of Australians through the collection, analysis and reporting of dental statistics and research on the dental workforce, dental health status, dental practices and the use of dental services.

Suggested citation

AIHW Dental Statistics and Research Unit (1999). *Child Dental Health Survey, South Australia* 1996.

Acknowledgments

The data used for this report were collected in collaboration with the South Australian Dental Service. The support of the service and its staff was crucial to the successful collection of data for this survey.

DSRU Staff:

Director: Professor John Spencer
Acting Deputy Directors: Dr Kaye Roberts-Thomson

Mr Fearnley Szuster

Research Officers: Mr Jason Armfield

Mr David Brennan Mr Knute Carter Dr Jane Chalmers Mrs Judy Stewart

Research Associates: Dr Rachel Mathew

Dr Anu Narayanan

Administrative Staff: Mrs Lorna Lucas

Mrs Lyn Tucker

Consultant: Dr Gary Slade (University of North Carolina)

Any comments or information relevant to the subject matter of this report would be welcome. Correspondence should be directed to:

The Director AIHW Dental Statistics and Research Unit The University of Adelaide SOUTH AUSTRALIA 5005

Tel: (08) 8303 4051 Fax: (08) 8303 4858

E-mail: aihw.dsru@dentistry.adelaide.edu.au

Website: http://www.adelaide.edu.au/socprev-dent/dsru

CONTENTS

Purpose of this report	1
Demographic composition of the sample	1
Area of sampling	2
Deciduous teeth: age-specific caries experience	2
Permanent teeth: age-specific caries experience	2
All teeth: age-specific caries experience	3
Fissure sealants: age-specific experience	4
Immediate treatment needs	4
School Dental Service examinations	4
Percentage of children with dmft=0, DMFT=0 and d+D=4+	5
TABLES	
Table 1: Demographic composition of the sample	6
Table 2: Area of sampling (weighted)	7
Table 3: Deciduous teeth: age-specific caries experience	8
Table 4: Permanent teeth: age-specific caries experience	9
Table 5: All teeth: age-specific caries experience	. 10
Table 6: Fissure sealants: age-specific experience	. 11
Table 7: Immediate treatment needs: age-specific distribution	. 12
Table 8: School Dental Service examinations: age-specific distribution	. 13
FIGURES	
Figure 1: Percentage of children with dmft=0, DMFT=0 and d+D=4+	. 14

Purpose of this report

This report continues the series of annual reports providing descriptive statistics concerning child dental health in South Australia, and follows the 1995 report. Information listed in the tables includes: the age and sex of children in the sample, their deciduous and permanent caries experience, frequency of fissure sealants and children's history of School Dental Service examinations. These data were collected during the 1996 calendar year from SA School Dental Service patients by dental therapists and dentists. A random sampling procedure was used. This was achieved by selecting those children whose birthdays were on the 13th, 30th or 31st day of any month. Participants from non-metropolitan clinics who had previously participated in the Child Fluoride Study¹ were sampled at a higher rate by including children born on the 13th or between the 26th and 31st of any month. Approximately one third of children sampled from non-metropolitan clinics had previously participated in the Child Fluoride Study and these children comprised approximately one fifth of the total sample for this report.

The following sections describe briefly each table and contain a simple summary statement highlighting differences between the 1996 and 1995 data. However, no formal hypothesis tests have been undertaken, and descriptions of difference between years are intended as a guide to the reader, rather than a statistical evaluation of trends.

Demographic composition of the sample

Table 1 lists at the left the number of children sampled according to their age. The majority of children were aged 5 years or more, and there were large numbers of children in the range 5 to 15 years. There was a tendency for children aged 9-12 years within this age range to be represented in slightly greater numbers. Males and females were represented in approximately equivalent numbers. There was not more than 20 per cent variation in the gender balance within most age groups, the exception being for 6 year-olds where there were 24 per cent more females than males, and for 9 year-olds where there were 32 per cent more males than females.

The age distribution of the sample is related to the main target groups of children served by the School Dental Service in SA. This illustrates that the sample is representative of children in primary school and early secondary school, rather than all children in South Australia. Consequently, those children who are outside the main school dental service target groups (less than 5 or more than 17 years) may differ on key characteristics and are likely to be less representative of their respective age groups in the SA population.

Table 1 also shows the weighted distribution of children by age. This distribution is derived by weighting the numbers of children by both the sampling ratio used to select them and time since last visit. The number of children in the weighted sample is 17 less than for the raw sample due to missing data for some children for time since last visit. It should be noted that all subsequent analyses use the weighted distribution of children to derive results.

An NHMRC funded project, conducted in collaboration with SADS, designed to examine the effect of water fluoridation on caries incidence.

Changes since 1995

The 1996 sample is larger than the 1995 sample by 545 children. In other respects, the proportional distribution of ages and sexes is similar to the 1995 sample.

Area of sampling

Approximately twice as many children were sampled from clinics in metropolitan Adelaide than were sampled from non-metropolitan clinics. Sampling rates across age groups are roughly comparable. The weighted distribution shown in Table 2 indicates that weighted results are based on a sample comprising approximately three times the children seen in metropolitan clinics than children seen in non-metropolitan clinics.

Deciduous teeth: age-specific caries experience

The mean number of clinically decayed teeth shows variation among key ages, ranging from a low of 0.29 among children aged 10 years to a high of 0.65 among children up to 4 years of age (see Table 3). There is an age-associated decline in the number of clinically decayed teeth up to the age of 10 years. The trend in dmft is not as clear. Interestingly, deciduous dmft is highest among nine year-olds (mean = 1.58) and lowest among six year-olds (mean = 1.17) despite the nine year-olds having, on average, seven less deciduous teeth than six year-olds.

The percentage of caries experience presenting as untreated decay (d/dmft) shows a strong age-associated decline, reducing from 55.8 per cent among children aged 5 years to 23.6 per cent for children aged 10 years. This pattern of deciduous caries experience among the youngest groups (dominated by patients new to the School Dental Service) indicates that these children enter the dental program with a relatively high level of untreated decay.

The percentage of children free of clinically detectable caries (% dmft = 0) also shows a general age-associated reduction from 67.3 per cent among children up to the age of four years to 52.6 per cent among nine year-olds.

Changes since 1995

The mean number of clinically decayed teeth decreased from 1995, with declines occurring across all age groups. There were also declines in the mean dmft for most ages, in the order of 0.1 to 0.4 teeth. However, children up to four years of age and those aged five years showed an increase in dmft. These results produced a substantial reduction in the d/dmft ratio for these youngest groups (40.4 per cent less for children up to four and 14.6 per cent less for five year-olds). The percentage of children with no deciduous caries experience (dmft=0) increased for children age six to nine, remained relatively unchanged for 10 year-olds and decreased for children aged up to five years-old.

Permanent teeth: age-specific caries experience

The mean number of clinically decayed permanent teeth was consistently smaller than the mean number of decayed deciduous teeth for children aged less than 11 years (see Table 4). In children up to the age of eight years this can be accounted for by the small number of permanent teeth present. However the mean number of clinically decayed teeth remains low (peaking at a mean of 0.37 for 14 year-olds) despite the rapid eruption of permanent teeth from the age of nine years.

The mean DMFT increased with age from a low of 0.01 for 5 year-olds to a high of 1.20 for 16-18 year-olds. The mean DMFT for 12 year-olds was 0.47.

The D/DMFT ratio declined from the youngest ages until age 10 years, where it achieved a relatively stable level below 35 per cent, before reducing even further for the oldest children. D/DMFT was lowest for children aged 16 years and over (mean = 13.2 per cent)

The percentage of children free of clinically detectable caries in their permanent dentition also declined systematically with increasing age. More than 70 per cent of 12 year-old children had DMFT=0.

Changes since 1995

There is evidence of a decline in both the number of decayed permanent teeth and DMFT across a number of ages, with the largest reductions occurring in the older age groups. The only increase in DMFT occurred for 11 and 14 year-old children (up 0.12 and 0.32 respectively).

The reduction in decayed teeth is mirrored by a change in the D/DMFT ratios between years, with a lower proportion evidenced across most age groups. Except for 11 and 14 year-olds, the percentage of children with DMFT=0 has increased for most ages.

All teeth: age-specific caries experience

Shown in Table 5, the percentage of children with at least one instance of untreated caries in the combined deciduous and permanent dentition ranged from 11.1 per cent of 16-18 year-olds to 29.4 per cent of children aged 5 years. Based on observations from previous tables, much of this untreated decay could be attributed to observable carious lesions in the deciduous dentition.

More than 97 per cent of children across all ages had no deciduous or permanent teeth missing due to caries (m+M=0). The percentage of children with neither deciduous or permanent caries experience (dmft+DMFT=0) declined into the middle age ranges (9 to 11 years), increased for children aged 12 and 13 years (60.4 and 59.3 per cent respectively), and then declined again.

Changes since 1995

There have been increases in the percentages of children with d+D=0 across most ages. The tendency noted historically for younger children to be more frequently represented among those with extensive decay (d+D=3 or d+D=4+) appears to have diminished so that there is no discernible age relationship. There have been increases in the percentages of children with dmft+DMFT=0.

Fissure sealants: age-specific experience

As can be seen in Table 6, the mean number of fissure sealants increased with increasing age of the children. There was a mean of 1.2 sealants per child among 12 year-olds. The prevalence of fissure sealants among those without permanent caries experience (DMFT=0) was consistently less than among those with some permanent caries experience (DMFT=1+). This suggests that fissure sealants were being used preferentially in children with past caries experience.

Changes since 1995

There was evidence of an increase in the average number of fissure sealants for most ages (the exception being 15 year-olds).

Immediate treatment needs

This data item refers to children who at the time of examination have, or are likely to develop within four weeks, pain, infection or serious life threatening conditions. It is intended to capture the more severe clinical conditions which may not be apparent from statistics such as the number of teeth affected with some caries experience. As is shown in Table 7, extremely low percentages of children had immediate treatment needs. Both deciduous and permanent caries experience (dmft and DMFT) were frequently high for this group.

Changes since 1995

Although, due to small numbers, there has been no significant change across most age groups in the percentage of children with immediate treatment needs, overall there has been a trebling of children indicated as needing immediate treatment (from 16 in 1995 to 48 in 1996).

School Dental Service examinations

Table 8 shows that almost all the children had previously been examined within the School Dental Service. The right hand side of the table refers to the period of time since the previous School Dental Service examination among children with a previous record of examination. There was a distinctive age-related pattern with younger children more likely than older children to have received a previous examination within the last 12 months. Approximately one-third of children aged six years or less had received an examination within the previous 12 months.

Changes since 1995

The number of children up to 5 years of age who have received a previous examination has increased. However, it should be noted that the 1995 results used unweighted data, making direct comparisons with this years results problematic.

Percentage of children with dmft=0, DMFT=0 and d+D=4+

Figure 1 presents data contained in Tables 3, 4 and 5 to summarise the extent of dental health (represented by percentage with no deciduous and permanent caries experience) and the extent of more extensive untreated decay (represented by the percentage with d+D=4 or more).

TABLES

Table 1: Demographic composition of the sample

	No. of c	hildren in samp	le ¹	No. of childre	en in sample (we	ighted) ²
Age (years)	Males	Females	Persons	Males	Females	Persons
2	6	9	15	1	2	3
3	27	27	54	7	10	17
4	48	68	116	14	29	44
5	124	112	236	96	88	184
6	98	122	220	113	116	230
7	118	115	233	131	129	260
8	115	112	227	121	131	251
9	200	157	357	211	165	376
10	227	200	427	221	211	433
11	260	233	493	261	246	507
12	210	214	424	222	217	439
13	171	158	329	168	164	332
14	153	137	290	151	139	290
15	106	105	211	115	111	226
16	91	85	176	100	97	196
17	51	51	102	53	53	106
18	2	2	4	1	2	3
Total	2007	1907	3914	1988	1909	3897

The number of children included in the sample equals the total number of records sampled where date of birth is known less second and subsequent examinations of children already sampled within the reporting period.

Weighting is used to adjust for the differential sampling of children from metropolitan and non-metropolitan clinics and for differences in time since last visit.

Table 2: Area of sampling (weighted)

	Metro		Non-me	tro	Unknov	/n	Total	
Age (years)	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%	No.	%
2	3	0.1	-	-	-	-	3	0.1
3	13	0.4	3	0.3	_	_	16	0.4
4	32	1.1	10	1.1	2	5.0	44	1.1
5	120	4.1	63	7.0	1	2.5	184	4.7
6	176	6.0	53	5.9	_	_	229	5.9
7	172	5.8	87	9.7	1	2.5	260	6.7
8	203	6.9	48	5.4	_	_	251	6.4
9	303	10.3	69	7.7	4	10.0	376	9.7
10	328	11.1	101	11.3	4	10.0	433	11.1
11	381	12.9	120	13.4	6	15.0	507	13.0
12	332	11.2	96	10.7	11	27.5	439	11.3
13	256	8.7	74	8.2	2	5.0	332	8.5
14	220	7.4	68	7.6	1	2.5	289	7.4
15	176	6.0	44	4.9	6	15.0	226	5.8
16	155	5.2	39	4.3	2	5.0	196	5.0
17	84	2.8	21	2.3	_	_	105	2.7
18	2	0.1	1	0.1	-	-	3	0.1
Total	2956	100	897	100	40	100	3893	100

Table 3: Deciduous teeth: age-specific caries experience¹

This table uses State-wide data to describe the dmft index and its components for individual (year of birth) ages. Age-specific indices denoted with an asterisk (*) are those in which the relative standard error exceeds 40 per cent, and population estimates of these indices are statistically unreliable.

		Deciduous Teeth Present	Decay	ed ²	dmf	t	d/dmft	Children with dmft=0
Age (years)	No. of children (weighted)	mean	mean	sd	mean	sd	%	%
Up to 4	64	19.96	0.65	1.99	1.22	2.54	46.78	67.3
5	184	19.48	0.58	1.12	1.25	2.18	55.76	62.3
6	230	17.51	0.44	1.06	1.17	2.32	48.55	65.7
7	260	14.98	0.38	0.94	1.33	2.47	34.84	61.3
8	251	12.21	0.36	0.83	1.34	2.07	29.68	57.1
9	376	10.52	0.31	0.72	1.58	2.16	24.57	52.6
10	433	7.82	0.29	0.76	1.27	1.90	23.58	55.5

dmft - decayed, missing or filled deciduous teeth

sd - standard deviation

¹ Legend d – decayed deciduous teeth

² Including recurrent caries in filled teeth.

Table 4: Permanent teeth: age-specific caries experience¹

This table uses State-wide data to describe the DMFT index and its components for individual (year of birth) ages. Age-specific indices denoted with an asterisk (*) are those in which the relative standard error exceeds 40 per cent, and population estimates of these indices are statistically unreliable.

		Permanent Teeth Present	Decay	/ed	DMF	·Τ	D/DMFT	Children with DMFT=0	
Age (years)	No. of children (weighted)	mean	mean	sd	mean	sd	%	%	
5	184	1.07	0.01*	0.10*	0.01*	0.10*	100.00	99.1	
6	230	4.57	0.07	0.32	0.11	0.46	73.53	93.9	
7	260	8.06	0.03*	0.25*	0.07	0.37	37.50	95.4	
8	251	11.18	0.07	0.26	0.16	0.45	49.58	86.2	
9	376	13.07	0.08	0.32	0.25	0.68	40.37	84.8	
10	433	16.10	0.07	0.27	0.28	0.66	25.75	80.4	
11	507	20.10	0.15	0.49	0.47	0.88	30.40	71.2	
12	439	24.24	0.15	0.48	0.47	0.95	32.52	71.8	
13	332	26.08	0.20	0.53	0.59	1.00	33.63	65.2	
14	290	27.01	0.37	1.18	1.03	1.79	34.48	57.2	
15	226	27.25	0.23	0.58	1.10	1.54	23.07	52.3	
16–18	305	27.45	0.14	0.45	1.20	1.78	13.19	51.9	

Legend D – decayed permanent teeth

DMFT - decayed, missing or filled permanent teeth

sd - standard deviation

Table 5: All teeth: age-specific caries experience¹

This table uses State-wide data to describe the combined dmft and DMFT indices and their components for individual (year of birth) ages. Age-specific indices denoted with an asterisk (*) are those in which the relative standard error exceeds 40 per cent, and population estimates of these indices are statistically unreliable.

	_		% w	/ith d+D=				% with	
Age (years)	No. of children (weighted)	0	1	2	3	4+	m+M=0	f+F=0	dmft+DMFT =0
Up to 4	64	79.8	10.4	0.8*	2.3*	0.4*	98.4	80.6	67.3
5	184	70.6	13.2	9.7	3.1	3.3	98.4	76.7	62.3
6	230	74.2	12.4	7.7	3.3	0.4*	97.8	75.3	63.8
7	260	78.2	11.8	5.1	0.4*	3.0	98.9	67.5	58.9
8	251	74.4	15.2	6.3	2.3	0.4*	98.4	60.1	51.1
9	376	74.8	16.7	5.5	2.0	0.5*	98.5	56.4	47.0
10	433	77.9	14.9	3.7	1.4	2.0	98.9	55.0	49.6
11	507	75.7	14.0	6.6	3.1	0.5*	99.7	56.3	47.5
12	439	83.8	11.1	3.7	0.5*	0.5*	99.9	68.7	60.4
13	332	83.1	12.2	3.8	0.5*	0.0	99.5	68.5	59.3
14	290	80.6	12.3	3.4	0.4*	0.4*	100.0	66.4	54.6
15	226	83.6	10.5	5.0	0.7*	3.3*	99.5	57.9	51.2
16–18	305	88.9	8.7	2.0	1.0*	3.3*	100.0	55.4	51.9

¹ Legend

d - decayed deciduous teeth

D - decayed permanent teeth

m - deciduous teeth missing due to caries

M - permanent teeth missing due to caries

f - deciduous teeth restored due to caries

F - permanent teeth restored due to caries

dmft - decayed, missing or filled deciduous teeth

DMFT - decayed, missing or filled permanent teeth

Table 6: Fissure sealants: age-specific experience¹

This table uses State-specific data to describe the distribution of fissure sealants for individual (year of birth) ages, along with the caries experience of those who have fissure sealants and those who do not. Age-specific indices denoted with an asterisk (*) are those in which the relative standard error exceeds 40 per cent, and population estimates of these indices are statistically unreliable.

	_	No. of sea	lants	Children with	DMFT=0	Children with DMFT=1+		
Age (years)	No. of children (weighted)	mean	sd	no.	% with F/S=1+	no.	% with F/S=1+	
6	230	0.03*	0.34*	216	0.5*	14	0.0	
7	260	0.19	0.73	248	6.3	12	29.5	
8	251	0.57	1.12	217	22.3	35	52.2	
9	376	0.93	1.42	319	32.7	57	55.0	
10	433	0.91	1.38	348	32.4	85	66.6	
11	507	1.08	1.50	361	37.6	146	55.3	
12	439	1.20	1.67	315	38.8	124	55.4	
13	332	1.61	2.04	217	43.6	116	72.1	
14	290	1.89	2.35	166	48.2	124	73.5	
15	226	1.83	2.12	118	56.8	108	64.3	
16–18	305	2.50	2.56	158	50.1	147	84.0	

1 Legend DMFT – decayed, missing or filled permanent teeth.

Table 7: Immediate treatment needs: age-specific distribution¹

This table, based on State-wide data, describes the number and proportion of children in immediate need of dental treatment. This classification is accorded to children who have, or who are likely to develop within four weeks, oral pain or infection. The dental caries experience of this group of children is also described. Age-specific indices denoted with an asterisk (*) are those in which the relative standard error exceeds 40 per cent, and population estimates of these indices are statistically unreliable.

				dr	nft	DN	1FT		% with d+D=				
Age (years)	No. of children $(weighted)^2$	No.	% of all children	mean	sd	mean	sd	0	1	2	3	4+	
Up to 4	64	0	0.1*	1.00	-	_	_	0.0	100.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
5	184	2	1.1*	4.08	_	_	_	0.0	0.0	91.7	0.0	8.3*	
6	230	2	0.9*	4.71	_	_	_	63.0*	0.0	33.0*	4.2*	0.0	
7	260	3	1.3*	2.50*	3.60*	_	_	39.0*	39.0*	0.0	0.0	22.0*	
8	251	4	1.4*	3.18	2.23	_	_	32.0*	2.3*	36.0*	30.0*	0.0	
9	376	3	0.9*	3.93	2.54	2.00	1.60	0.0	11.0*	27.0*	0.0	61.0*	
10	433	4	0.9*	2.80*	2.40*	1.40*	1.80*	23.0*	20.0*	44.0*	0.0	13.0*	
11	507	5	1.0*	0.35*	1.10*	1.30*	1.30*	84.6	15.0*	0.0	0.0	0.0	
12	439	4	0.8*	2.32	0.88	0.83	0.44	0.0	100.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	
13	332	6	1.7	0.14*	0.55*	2.10	0.33	0.0	10.0*	89.8	0.0	0.0	
14	290	4	1.4*	_	_	2.30*	2.10*	86.0	0.0	14.0*	0.0	0.0	
15	226	6	2.6	_	_	2.50*	2.50*	23.0*	77.2	0.0	0.0	0.0	
16–18	305	5	1.7*	_	_	2.97	2.50	49.0*	32.0*	20.0*	0.0	0.0	

DMFT - decayed, missing or filled permanent teeth

Legend: dmft - number of decayed, missing or filled deciduous teeth

d - number of decayed deciduous teeth

D - number of decayed permanent teeth

Data relating to second or subsequent examinations of children within this reporting period are eliminated.

Table 8: School Dental Service examinations: age-specific distribution

This table describes the percentage distribution of children who have received initial and subsequent dental examinations in the School Dental Service. Data from all examinations of children who were examined during the report period are included in this table; percentage estimates denoted with an asterisk (*) are those in which the relative standard error exceeds 40 per cent, and population estimates of these percentages are statistically unreliable.

	_		s examina ental Serv		Children with previous examination Months since last examination (%) ¹				
Age (years)	No. of children examined	Yes	No	Unknown	0–6	7–12	13–24	25+	
Up to 4	64	83.3	16.4	0.3*	3.9*	40.4	55.6	0.2*	
5	184	96.7	2.8*	0.5*	2.0*	22.9	75.0	0.1*	
6	230	98.8	1.0*	0.2*	0.8*	18.9	74.0	6.3	
7	260	99.5	0.3*	0.2*	0.8*	16.7	77.9	4.5	
8	251	99.5	0.3*	0.2*	0.5*	21.2	72.8	5.5	
9	376	99.9	0.0	0.0	0.9*	17.2	78.9	2.9	
10	433	99.8	0.1*	0.1*	0.4*	13.0	80.2	6.3	
11	507	99.9	0.0	0.0	0.7*	8.3	81.9	9.1	
12	439	99.8	0.1*	0.1*	0.3*	8.8	85.3	5.5	
13	332	99.9	0.0	0.0	0.1*	12.3	82.9	4.7	
14	290	100.0	0.0	0.0	0.7*	11.6	77.8	9.8	
15	226	100.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	7.6	86.2	6.2	
16–18	305	100.0	0.0	0.0	0.2*	7.6	81.5	10.7	

Excludes those with no previous examination and where the date of previous examination is unknown.

FIGURES

Figure 1: Percentage of children with dmft=0, DMFT=0 and d+D=4+

